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II. NATURE OF THE ACTI™N

2. This Complaint alleges that Respondent performed renovations for compensation on 82
pre-1978 dwelling units. Of these 82 renovations, 75 took place between May and July 2009 and
seven took place between April and July 2010.

3. Respondent is hereby notified of Complainant’s determination that Respondent has
violated Sections 15, 402(c) and 406(b) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2614, 2682(c) and 2686(b),
Section 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2689, the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction
Act of 1992 (“the Act”), 42 U.S.C. § 4851 et seq., and the federal regulations promulgated
thereunder, entitled the “Renovation Repair and Painting Rule” (“RRP Rule”), as set forth at 40
C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart E. Complainant seeks civil penalties pursuant to Section 16 of TSCA,
15 U.S.C. § 2615, which provides that violations of Section 409 of TSCA are subject to the
assessment by Complainant of civil and/or criminal penalties.

III. STATUTORY AND REC"™ ATORY B* “1""ROUND

4. In 1992, Congress passed the Act in response to findings that low-level lead poisoning is
widespread among American children, that pre-1980 American housing stock contains more than
three million tons of lead in the form of lead-based paint, and that the ingestion of lead from
deteriorated or abraded lead-based paint is the most common cause of lead poisoning in children.
One of the stated purposes of the Act is to ensure that the existence of lead-based paint hazards is
taken into account during the renovation of homes and apartments. To carry out this purpose, the
Act added a new title to TSCA entitled “Title IV-Lead Exposure Reduction,” which currently
includes Sections 401-411 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2681-2692.

5. In 1996, EPA promulgated regulations to implement Section 402(a) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C.

§ 2682(a). These regulations are set forth at 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart L. In 1998, EPA
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10.  Section 16(a)(1) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)(1), provides that any person who violates
a provision of Section 15 or 409 of TSCA shall be liable to the United States for a civil penalty.
11.  Section 16(a) of TSCA and 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(d) authorize the assessment of a civil
penalty of up to $25,000 per day per violation of the RRP Rule. Pursuant to the Debt Collection
Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 3701, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, violations that occur on or
after January 13, 2009, are subject to penalties up to $37,500 per day per violation. See 73 Fed.
Reg. 75340 (December 11, 2008).

IV.  APPTICAPY 7 ™™ INTTIONS
12. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, the term “EPA pamphlet” means the EPA pamphlets
developed under Section 406(a) of TSCA for use in complying with 406(b) of TSCA and the
RRP Rule. At all imes relevant to the violations alleged herein, such pamphlets were entitled
either Protect Your Family From Lead in Your Home or Renovate Right: Important Lead Hazard
Information for Families, Child Care Providers and Schools. The term “EPA pamphlet” may
also include any State or Tribal pamphlet approved by EPA pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.326 that
is developed for the same purpose. This includes reproductions of the pamphlet when copied in
full and without revision or deletion of material from the pamphlet (except for the addition or
revision of State or local sources of information).
13. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, the term “firm” means a company, partnership,
corporation, sole proprietorship or individual doing business, association, or other business
entity; a Federal, State, Tribal, or local government agency; or a nonprofit organization.
14.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, the term “minor repair and maintenance activities”
means activities, including minor heating, ventilation or air conditioning work, electrical work,

and plumbing, that disrupt 6 square feet or less of painted surface per room for interior activities
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or 20 square :t or less of painted surface for exterior activities where none of the work
practices prohibited or restricted by 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(a)(3) are used and where the work does
not involve window replacement or demolition of painted surface areas.

15.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, the term “renovation” means the modification of any
existing structure, or portion thereof, that results in the disturbance of painted surfaces, unless
that activity is performed as part of an abatement as defined by 40 C.F.R. § 745.223. The term
renovation includes (but is not limited to): the removal or modification of painted surfaces or
painted components (e.g., modification of painted doors, surface restoration, window repair,
surface restoration activity (such as sanding, scraping, or other such activities that may generate
paint dust)); the removal of building components (e.g., walls, ceiling, plumbing, windows);
weatherization projects (e.g. cutting holes in painted surfaces to install blown-in insulation or to
gain access to attics, planning thresholds to install weather-stripping), and interim controls that
disturb painted surfaces. The term renovation does not include minor repair and maintenance
activities.

16. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.83, the term “renovator”’ means an individual who either
performs or directs workers who perform renovations. A certified renovator is a renovator who
has successfully completed a renovator course accredited by EPA or an EPA-authorized State or
Tribal program.

17.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.103 and Section 401(17) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2681(17), the
term “farget housing” means any housing constructed prior to 1978, except housing for the
elderly or persons with disabilities (unless any child who is less than 6 years of age resides or is

expected to reside in such housing) or any 0-bedroom dwelling.
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18.  Pursuant to Section 401(14) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2681(14), and 40 C.F.R. § 745.103,
the term “residential dwelling” means either a single-family dwelling, including attached
structures such as porches and stoops, or a single-family dwelling unit in a structure that contains
more than one separate residential dwelling unit, and in which each such unit is used or
occupied, or intended to be used or occupied, in whole or in part, as the residence of one or more
persons.

19.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.103, the term “owner” means any entity that has legal title to
target housing, including but not limited to individuals, partnerships, corporations, trusts,
government agencies, housing agencies, Indian tribes and nonprofit organizations, except where
a mortgagee holds legal title to property serving as collateral for a mortgage loan, in which case
the owner would be the mortgagor.

V. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

20.  Respondent is a Massachusetts corporation with its principal place of business located at
150 Wood Road, Suite 401, Braintree, MA.

21. Respondent is a “person” within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 745.83.

22.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent was a “firm” within the meaning of
40 C.F.R. § 745.83.

23.  Respondent is a company that provides interior and exterior house painting services in
the New England region.

24.  Respondent employs college students as “branch managers” who select a team of painters
for each renovation project.

25.  Respondent trains and provides assistance to branch managers.
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38.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, the 75 dwelling units referred to in Paragraph 34
above and the seven dwelling units referred to in Paragraph 37 above were target housing.

39.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, the painting renovation projects were
“renovations performed for compensation” subject to the RRP Rule pursuant to 40 C.F.R.

§ 745.82(a).

40.  The renovations performed at the 82 dwelling units do not satisfy the requirements for an
exemption to the provisions of TSCA or the RRP Rule.

41.  Respondent was a certified firm pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.89, as of April 1, 2010.

VI. VIOLATIONS

Count 1 - Failure to Provide Pre-renovation Education Information

42.  Complainant incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through 41.

43.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.84(a)(1), a firm must provide PRE information in the form of
an EPA pamphlet to customers prior to performing renovations of target housing. Firms are also
required to obtain receipts for the PRE information from customers and to keep a copy of the
signed PRE forms for at least three years.

44.  Respondent failed to distribute EPA pamphlets to customers prior to commencing
renovations at 75 residential dwellings. These 75 renovations occurred between May and July
2009 (See attached Table 1).

45.  Respondent’s failure to distribute PRE information to customers at the renovation
projects described in Paragraph 44 above constitutes 75 separate violations of 40 C.F.R.

§ 745.84(a)(1) and Section 409 of TSCA.
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following completion of the renovation. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.86(b)(6), firms performing
renovation must retain all records documenting compliance with the work practice standards of
40 C.F.R. § 745.85, including documentation that a certified renovator performed or directed
workers to perform tasks described by 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(a), the regulation that delineates work
practice standards for renovation activities.

52.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent failed to retain records that a certified
renovator performed or directed workers to perform tasks described by 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(a) at
the following seven residential dwellings where Respondent conducted renovations: 103 Doyle
Avenue, Providence, Rhode Island; 271 Newman Avenue, Rumford, Rhode Island; 65 Ware
Lane, Marblehead, Massachusetts; 6 Rock Cliff Road, Marblehead, Massachusetts; 9 Winthrop
Street, Marblehead, Massachusetts; 116 Central Street, Concord, Massachusetts and 28 Clifton
Avenue, Marblehead, Massachusetts.

53.  Respondent’s failure to retain records documenting that a certified renovator performed
or directed workers to perform tasks described by 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(a) at each of the seven
renovation projects listed Paragraph 52, constitutes seven violations of 40 C.F.R.

§§ 745.86(a) and (b)(6) and Sections 15 and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615 and 2689.

Count 4 — Failure to Retain ™ ~~ords Demonstrating That a Certified Renovator Performed
™--t-Renovation Cle - —*ng Verification Described In 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(b)

54.  Complainant incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through 53.

55.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.86(a), firms performing renovations must retain all records
necessary to demonstrate compliance with 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart E, for a period of three
years following completion of the renovation. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.86(b)(6), firms

performing renovation must retain all records documenting compliance with the work practice
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standards promulgated in 40 C.F.R. § 745.85, including documentation that a certified renovator
complied with the standards for post-renovation cleaning verification, described in 40 C.F.R.

§ 745.85(b).

56.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, Respondent failed to retain records that a certified
renovator performed post-renovation cleaning verification described in 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(b) at
the following seven dwelling units where Respondent conducted renovations: 103 Doyle
Avenue, Providence, Rhode Island; 271 Newman Avenue, Rumford, Rhode Island; 65 Ware
Lane, Marblehead, Massachusetts; 6 Rock Cliff Road, Marblehead, Massachusetts; 9 Winthrop
Street, Marblehead, Massachusetts; 116 Central Street, Concord, Massachusetts and 28 Clifton
Avenue, Marblehead, Massachusetts.

57.  Respondent’s failure to retain records documenting that a certified renovator performed
post-renovation cleaning verifications described in 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(b) at each of the seven
renovation projects listed in Paragraph 56, constitutes seven violations of 40 C.F.R.

§§ 745.86(a) and (b)(6) and Sections 15 and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615 and 2689.

Count 5 — Failure to Retain a Certi®~~tion By A “"~~*fied Renovator

58. Complainant incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through 57.

59.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.86(a), firms performing renovations must retain all records
necessary to demonstrate compliance with 40 C.F.R. Part 745, Subpart E, for a period of three
years following completion of the renovation. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.86(b)(6), firms
performing renovations must retain all records documenting compliance with the work practice
standards promulgated in 40 C.F.R. § 745.85, including but not limited to a certification by the
certified renovator assigned to the project that: (i) training was provided workers; (ii) warning

signs were posted at entrances to work areas; (iii) if lead test kits were used, that the specified
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brand of kits was used at the specified locations and that the test  jults were as specified; (iv) if
paint chip samples were collected, that the samples were collected at the specified locations, that
the specified NNLAP-recognized laboratory analyzed the samples, and that the samples were as
specified; (v) work areas were appropriately contained; (vi) waste was contained on-site and
while being transported off-site; (vii) work areas were appropriately cleaned after the renovation;
and (viii) the certified renovator performed the appropriate post-renovation cleaning
verifications.

60.  Respondent failed to retain a certification by the certified renovator that the work
practices specified in subparagraphs (i) through (viii) of Paragraph 59 were conducted in
compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 745.85 at the following seven residential units where Respondent
conducted renovations: 103 Doyle Avenue, Providence, Rhode Island; 271 Newman Avenue,
Rumford, Rhode Island; 65 Ware Lane, Marblehead, Massachusetts; 6 Rock Cliff Road,
Marblehead, Massachusetts; 9 Winthrop Street, Marblehead, Massachusetts; 116 Central Street,
Concord, Massachusetts and 28 Clifton Avenue, Marblehead, Massachusetts.

61. Respondent’s failure to retain a certified renovator’s certification that work practices
were conducted in compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 745.85 at each of the seven renovation projects
listed in Paragraph 60, constitutes seven violations of 40 C.F.R. §§ 745.86(a) and (b)(6) and
Sections 15 and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615 and 2689

VII. PROPOSED PENALTY

62.  In determining the amount of any penalty to be assessed, Section 16 of TSCA requires
that Complainant consider the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the violations and,

with respect to Respondent, its ability to pay, the effect of the proposed penalty on the ability to
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owner ability to properly assess information regarding the risks associated with exposure to
lead-based paint and to weigh this information with regard to renovating the target housing in
question.

Count 2 - Failure to Retain Records Demonstrating that a Certified Renovator Provided
C- ‘he-Job Training *~~ Workers Used on Renovation Projects

68. EPA alleges that Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. §§ 745.86(a) and (b)(6) and Sections 15
and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615 and 2689, on five (5) separate occasions when it failed to
retain records that a certified renovator provided on-the-job training for workers used on
renovation projects.

69.  Failure to retain records that a certified renovator provided on-the-job training for
workers used on renovation projects impedes EPA’s ability to assess compliance with the RRP
Rule and presents an increased risk that a renovation firm will fail to comply with the work
practice standards of 40 C.F.R § 745.85. The RRP Rule requirements are designed to limit
exposure to lead during renovations and the work practice requirements are important to ensure
that firms are protecting children and other residents while renovations are ongoing.

Count 3 — Failure to ™ ~tain Records Demonstrating that a Certified Renovator
P-~formed Or Directer “/orkers To Perform Tasks Described at 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(a)

70.  EPA alleges that Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. §§ 745.86(a) and (b)(6) and Sections 15
and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615 and 2689, on seven (7) separate occasions when it failed to
retain records that a certified renovator performed or directed workers to perform tasks described
in 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(a).

71. Failure to maintain records that a certified renovator performed or directed workers to
perform tasks described by 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(a) impedes EPA’s ability to assess compliance

with the RRP Rule and presents an increased risk that a renovation firm will fail to comply with
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the work practice standards of 40 C.F.R § 745.85. The RRP Rule requirements are designed to
limit exposure to lead during renovations and the work practice requirements are important to
ensure that firms are protecting children and other residents while renovations are ongoing.

Count 4 — Failure “~ P~“~in Records Demonstrating That a Certified Renovator Performed
Post-P~~g-~“ion (""~~ning Verification Described In 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(b)

72.  EPA alleges that Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. §§ 745.86(a) and (b)(6) and Sections 15
and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615 and 2689, on seven (7) separate occasions when it failed to
retain records that a certified renovator performed post-renovation cleaning verifications
described in 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(b).

73.  Failure to retain records that a certified renovator performed post-renovation cleaning
verifications described in 40 C.F.R. § 745.85(b) impedes EPA’s ability to assess compliance
with the RRP Rule and presents an increased risk that a renovation firm will fail to comply with
the work practice standards of 40 C.F.R § 745.85. The RRP Rule requirements are designed to
limit exposure to lead during renovations and the work practice requirements are important to
ensure that firms are protecting children and other residents while renovations are ongoing.

Count 5 — Failure to Retain a Certification By A Certified Renovator

74.  EPA alleges that Respondent violated 40 C.F.R. §§ 745.86(a) and (b)(6) and Sections 15
and 409 of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2615 and 2689, on seven (7) separate occasions when it failed to
retain a certification by the certified renovator that the work practices specified in subparagraphs
(i) through (viii) of Paragraph 59 were conducted in compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 745.85.

75.  Failure to retain a certification by the certified renovator that the work practices specified
in subparagraphs (i) through (viii) of Paragraph 59 were conducted in compliance with 40 C.F.R.
§ 745.85 impedes EPA’s ability to assess compliance with the RRP Rule and presents an

increased risk that a renovation firm will fail to comply with the work practice standards of 40
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C.F.R § 745.85. The RRP Rule requirements are designed to limit exposure to lead during
renovations and the work practice requirements are important to ensure that firms are protecting
children and other residents while renovations are ongoing.

VIII. NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST A HEARING

76.  As provided by Section 16(a)(2)(A) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)(2)(A), and in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.14, Respondent has a right to request a hearing on any material
fact alleged in this Complaint. Any such hearing would be conducted in accordance with EPA’s
Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22. Any request for a hearing must be included in
Respondent’s written Answer to this Complaint (“Answer”) and filed with the Regional Hearing
Clerk at the address listed below within thirty (30) days of receipt of this Complaint.

77.  The Answer shall clearly and directly admit, deny, or explain each of the factual
allegations contained in the Complaint. Where Respondent has no knowledge as to a particular
factual allegation and so states, the allegation is deemed denied. The failure of Respondent to
deny an allegation contained in the Complaint constitutes an admission of that allegation. The
Answer must also state the circumstances or arguments alleged to constitute the grounds of any
defense; the facts that Respondent disputes; the basis for opposing any proposed penalty; and
whether a hearing is requested. See 40 C.F.R. § 22.15 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice for
the required contents of an Answer.

78.  Respondent shall send the original and one copy of the Answer, as well as a copy of all
other documents that Respondent files in this action, to the Regional Hearing Clerk at the

following address:
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allegations, and to provide whatever additional information may be relevant to the disposition of
this matter. To explore the possibility of settlement, Respondent or Respondent’s counsel should
contact Steven Schlang, Enforcement Counsel, at the address cited above or by calling 617-918-
1773. Please note that a request for an informal settlement conference by Respondent does not
automatically extend the 30-day time period within which a written Answer must be submitted in

order to avoid becoming subject to default.

Joanna Jerison Da..
Legal Enforcement Manager

Office of Environmental Stewardship

U.S. EPA, Region 1












